

Local Government Act 1993

Local Government (Areas) Regulation 2005

Reprinted as in force on 1 September 2005

Reprint No. 1

This reprint is prepared by the Office of the Queensland Parliamentary Counsel Warning—This reprint is not an authorised copy

Information about this reprint

This regulation is reprinted as at 1 September 2005.

This page is specific to this reprint. A table of reprints is included in the endnotes.

Also see endnotes for information about when provisions commenced.

Dates shown on reprints

Reprints dated at last amendment All reprints produced on or after 1 July 2002, hard copy and electronic, are dated as at the last date of amendment. Previously reprints were dated as at the date of publication. If a hard copy reprint is dated earlier than an electronic version published before 1 July 2002, it means the legislation was not further amended and the reprint date is the commencement of the last amendment.

If the date of a hard copy reprint is the same as the date shown for an electronic version previously published, it merely means that the electronic version was published before the hard copy version. Also, any revised edition of the previously published electronic version will have the same date as that version.

Replacement reprint date If the date of a hard copy reprint is the same as the date shown on another hard copy reprint it means that one is the replacement of the other.



Queensland

Local Government (Areas) Regulation 2005

Contents

		Page
Part 1	Preliminary	
1	Short title	5
2	Commencement	5
Part 2	Local government areas	
3	Declaration of local government areas etc	5
4	City of Brisbane	6
5	Area maps must be available for inspection	6
Part 3	Joint local governments	
6	Declaration of joint local government area—Act, s 42	7
7	Establishment, operation, jurisdiction and membership of joint local government—Act, ss 43–45 and 48	7
Part 4	Repeal	
8	Repeal of Local Government (Areas) Regulation 1995	7
Schedule 1	Information about local governments	8
Schedule 2	City of Brisbane—electoral ward boundaries	22
Schedule 3	Information about joint local governments	24
Part 1	Caloundra-Maroochy Water Supply Board	
1	Joint local government	24
2	Area	24
3	Composition	24
4	Jurisdiction	24
5	President	25
Part 2	Dalby–Wambo Aerodrome Board	
1	Joint local government	26
2	Area	26
3	Composition	26

Local Government (Areas) Regulation 2005

4	Jurisdiction	26
Part 3	Dalby-Wambo Library Board	
1	Joint local government	26
2	Area	26
3	Composition	27
4	Jurisdiction	27
5	Contributions	27
Part 4	Dalby-Wambo Saleyards Board	
1	Joint local government	27
2	Area	27
3	Composition	28
4	Jurisdiction	28
Part 5	Emerald-Peak Downs Saleyards Board	
1	Joint local government	28
2	Area	28
3	Composition	28
4	Jurisdiction	28
Part 6	Esk-Gatton-Laidley Water Board	
1	Joint local government	29
2	Area	29
3	Composition	29
4	Jurisdiction	29
Part 7	Gladstone-Calliope Aerodrome Board	
1	Joint local government	30
2	Area	30
3	Composition	30
4	Jurisdiction	30
Part 8	Goondiwindi–Waggamba Aerodrome Board	
1	Joint local government	31
2	Area	31
3	Composition	31
4	Jurisdiction	31
Part 9	Goondiwindi-Waggamba Community Cultural Centre Board	
1	Joint local government	31
2	Area	32
3	Composition	32
4	Jurisdiction	32

Local Government (Areas) Regulation 2005

Part 10	Mission Beach Marine Facilities Joint Board	
1	Joint local government	32
2	Area	32
3	Composition	32
4	Jurisdiction	33
Part 11	Nogoa River Flood Plain Board	
1	Joint local government	33
2	Area	33
3	Composition	33
4	Jurisdiction	33
5	Appointment of president and deputy president	33
6	Contributions	34
Part 12	Rockhampton District Saleyards Board	
1	Joint local government	34
2	Area	34
3	Composition	34
4	Jurisdiction	34
Part 13	Roma-Bungil Show Grounds and Saleyards Board	
1	Joint local government	35
2	Area	35
3	Composition	35
4	Jurisdiction	35
Endnotes		
1	Index to endnotes	36
2	Date to which amendments incorporated	36
3	Key	36
4	Table of reprints	37
5	List of legislation	37

s3

Local Government (Areas) Regulation 2005

[reprinted as in force on 1 September 2005]

Part 1 Preliminary

1 Short title

This regulation may be cited as the *Local Government (Areas) Regulation 2005*.

2 Commencement

This regulation commences on 1 September 2005.

Part 2 Local government areas

3 Declaration of local government areas etc.

- (1) This section and schedule 1 declare the following information about each local government mentioned in schedule 1—
 - (a) its class;
 - (b) its area and any divisions of the area;
 - (c) the assignment of councillors to each division;
 - (d) its composition.
- (2) A local government's area, and any divisions of the area, are shown on its area map under schedule 1.
- (3) Each area map is identified by a map number marked on the map.

4 City of Brisbane

(1) The electoral wards of the City of Brisbane are named in schedule 2.

s 5

- (2) The external boundaries of the local government area of the City of Brisbane are shown on map LGB1 edition 6, sheets 1 to 4.
- (3) The electoral ward boundaries are shown on map LGB1 edition 6, sheets 5 to 30.
- (4) For each ward, the boundaries are shown on the sheet number of map LGB1 edition 6 stated in schedule 2 opposite the ward's name.

5 Area maps must be available for inspection

- (1) The chief executive must—
 - (a) keep a copy of the area maps open to inspection; and
 - (b) ensure the following have a copy of its area map—
 - (i) City of Brisbane;
 - (ii) each local government mentioned in schedule 1.
- (2) The City of Brisbane and each local government must keep a copy of its area map open to inspection.
- (3) In this section—

area map means—

- (a) for City of Brisbane—the map mentioned in section 4; or
- (b) for a local government—its area map under schedule 1.

Part 3 Joint local governments

6 Declaration of joint local government area—Act, s 42

The part of the State consisting of the local government areas mentioned in section 2 of a part of schedule 3 is declared to be a joint local government area.

7 Establishment, operation, jurisdiction and membership of joint local government—Act, ss 43–45 and 48

- (1) A joint local government is established for each joint local government area.
- (2) The joint local government has the name stated for the joint local government in section 1 of a part of schedule 3.
- (3) The number of representatives to which each component local government is entitled on the joint local government is stated in section 3 of the part of the schedule.
- (4) The joint local government has the jurisdiction stated for the joint local government in section 4 of the part of the schedule.
- (5) An additional section of the part of the schedule has effect for section 44 of the Act.
- (6) In this section—

additional section means a section other than sections 1 to 4.

Part 4 Repeal

8 Repeal of Local Government (Areas) Regulation 1995

The Local Government (Areas) Regulation 1995 SL No. 61 is repealed.

Schedule 1 Information about local governments

sections 3 and 5

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)
Aramac	Shire	LGB4 edition 1	division 1—3 division 2—2 division 3—2	8
Atherton	Shire	LGB5 edition 1	division 1—3 division 2—3	7
Aurukun	Shire	LGB6 edition 1	area not divided	9
Balonne	Shire	LGB7 edition 1	area not divided	10
Banana	Shire	LGB8 edition 3	division 1—5 division 2—7	13
Barcaldine	Shire	LGB9 edition 1	area not divided	9
Barcoo	Shire	LGB10 edition 2	area not divided	7
Bauhinia	Shire	LGB11 edition 3	area not divided	9
Beaudesert	Shire	LGB12 edition 4	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1	9
Belyando	Shire	LGB13 edition 2	division 1—4 division 2—6	11
Bendemere	Shire	LGB14 edition 2	division 1—3 division 2—2 division 3—1	7

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)
Biggenden	Shire	LGB15 edition 1	area not divided	7
Blackall	Shire	LGB16 edition 1	area not divided	10
Boonah	Shire	LGB17 edition 5	division 1—2 division 2—2 division 3—2	7
Booringa	Shire	LGB18 edition 2	division 1—4 division 2—1 division 3—2 division 4—1	9
Boulia	Shire	LGB19 edition 2	division 1—1 division 2—6	8
Bowen	Shire	LGB20 edition 2	division 1—3 division 2—3 division 3—2	9
Broadsound	Shire	LGB21 edition 1	division 1—3 division 2—4 division 3—3	11
Bulloo	Shire	LGB22 edition 1	area not divided	5
Bundaberg	City	LGB23 edition 2	area not divided	9
Bungil	Shire	LGB24 edition 1	division 1—3 division 2—2 division 3—3	9
Burdekin	Shire	LGB25 edition 1	area not divided	11
Burke	Shire	LGB26 edition 2	area not divided	7
Burnett	Shire	LGB59 edition 2	area not divided	9

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)
Caboolture	Shire	LGB27 edition 4	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1	7
Cairns	City	LGB28 edition 3	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1 division 9—1 division 10—1 division 11—1 division 12—1	13
Calliope	Shire	LGB29 edition 2	area not divided	10
Caloundra	City	LGB30 edition 4	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1 division 9—1 division 10—1	11
Cambooya	Shire	LGB31 edition 4	division 1—2 division 2—2 division 3—2 division 4—2	9
Cardwell	Shire	LGB32 edition 1	division 1—3 division 2—3 division 3—3	10
Carpentaria	Shire	LGB33 edition 3	division 1—5 division 2—1 division 3—2	9

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)
Charters Towers	City	LGB34 edition 2	area not divided	7
Cherbourg	Shire	LGB151 edition 1	area not divided	7
Chinchilla	Shire	LGB35 edition 1	area not divided	9
Clifton	Shire	LGB36 edition 2	area not divided	7
Cloncurry	Shire	LGB37 edition 2	area not divided	10
Cook	Shire	LGB38 edition 3	division 1—1 division 2—2 division 3—1 division 4—3	8
Cooloola	Shire	LGB39 edition 4	division 1—2 division 2—3 division 3—3 division 4—3 division 5—1	13
Crows Nest	Shire	LGB40 edition 4	division 1—4 division 2—4	9
Croydon	Shire	LGB41 edition 1	area not divided	5
Dalby	Town	LGB42 edition 1	area not divided	9
Dalrymple	Shire	LGB43 edition 5	division 1—4 division 2—2 division 3—1 division 4—1	9
Diamantina	Shire	LGB44 edition 1	area not divided	7
Doomadgee	Shire	LGB152 edition 1	area not divided	7

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)
Douglas	Shire	LGB45 edition 2	division 1—2 division 2—2 division 3—2	7
Duaringa	Shire	LGB46 edition 2	division 1—3 division 2—7	11
Eacham	Shire	LGB47 edition 1	division 1—3 division 2—2 division 3—1	7
Eidsvold	Shire	LGB48 edition 1	area not divided	5
Emerald	Shire	LGB49 edition 1	area not divided	9
Esk	Shire	LGB50 edition 5	area not divided	11
Etheridge	Shire	LGB51 edition 1	division 1—3 division 2—3	7
Fitzroy	Shire	LGB52 edition 1	area not divided	9
Flinders	Shire	LGB53 edition 1	area not divided	9
Gatton	Shire	LGB54 edition 4	division 1—4 division 2—2 division 3—2	9
Gayndah	Shire	LGB55 edition 1	area not divided	7
Gladstone	City	LGB56 edition 1	area not divided	7

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)
Gold Coast	City	LGB58 edition 7	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 9—1 division 10—1 division 11—1 division 12—1 division 13—1 division 14—1	15
Goondiwindi	Town	LGB60 edition 1	area not divided	7
Herberton	Shire	LGB61 edition 1	division 1—3 division 2—3 division 3—2	9
Hervey Bay	City	LGB62 edition 4	area not divided	8
Hinchinbrook	Shire	LGB63 edition 2	area not divided	9
Hope Vale	Shire	LGB153 edition 1	area not divided	7
Ilfracombe	Shire	LGB64 edition 1	area not divided	7
Inglewood	Shire	LGB65 edition 1	area not divided	9
Injinoo	Shire	LGB154 edition 1	area not divided	5

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)
Ipswich	City	LGB66 edition 7	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1 division 9—1 division 10—1	11
Isis	Shire	LGB67 edition 1	area not divided	7
Isisford	Shire	LGB68 edition 1	area not divided	7
Jericho	Shire	LGB69 edition 1	area not divided	7
Johnstone	Shire	LGB70 edition 2	division 1—3 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1	9
Jondaryan	Shire	LGB71 edition 2	division 1—4 division 2—4	9
Kilcoy	Shire	LGB72 edition 1	area not divided	9
Kilkivan	Shire	LGB73 edition 3	area not divided	7
Kingaroy	Shire	LGB74 edition 1	area not divided	11
Kolan	Shire	LGB75 edition 1	area not divided	7
Kowanyama	Shire	LGB155 edition 1	area not divided	7
Laidley	Shire	LGB76 edition 4	area not divided	9

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)
Livingstone	Shire	LGB77 edition 1	area not divided	9
Lockhart River	Shire	LGB156 edition 1	area not divided	7
Logan	City	LGB78 edition 9	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1 division 9—1 division 10—1	11
Longreach	Shire	LGB79 edition 1	area not divided	10
Mackay	City	LGB80 edition 5	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1 division 9—2	11
Mapoon	Shire	LGB157 edition 1	area not divided	5
Mareeba	Shire	LGB81 edition 2	area not divided	9

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5	
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)	
Maroochy	Shire	LGB82 edition 9	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1 division 9—1 division 10—1 division 11—1 division 12—1	13	
Maryborough	City	LGB83 edition 4	area not divided	9	
McKinlay	Shire	LGB84 edition 1	area not divided	9	
Millmerran	Shire	LGB85 edition 2	division 1—3 division 2—3 division 3—3	10	
Mirani	Shire	LGB86 edition 2	division 1—3 division 2—2 division 3—2	8	
Miriam Vale	Shire	LGB87 edition 1	area not divided	7	
Monto	Shire	LGB88 edition 2	division 1—3 division 2—4	8	
Mornington	Shire	LGB90 edition 1	area not divided	9	
Mount Isa	City	LGB91 edition 2	area not divided	9	
Mount Morgan	Shire	LGB92 edition 1	area not divided	7	
Mundubbera	Shire	LGB94 edition 1	area not divided	9	
Murgon	Shire	LGB95 edition 3	area not divided	7	

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5	
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)	
Murilla	Shire	LGB96 edition 2	division 1—3 division 2—2 division 3—2	8	
Murweh	Shire	LGB97 edition 2	division 1—2 division 2—1 division 3—6	10	
Nanango	Shire	LGB98 edition 1	division 1—2 division 2—2 division 3—2 division 4—2	9	
Napranum	Shire	LGB158 edition 1	area not divided	7	
Nebo	Shire	LGB99 edition 2	division 1—4 division 2—4	9	
New Mapoon	Shire	LGB159 edition 1	area not divided	5	
Noosa	Shire	LGB100 edition 8	division 1—3 division 2—2 division 3—2 division 4—2	10	
Palm Island	Shire	LGB160 edition 1	area not divided	7	
Paroo	Shire	LGB101 edition 1	area not divided	8	
Peak Downs	Shire	LGB102 edition 1	area not divided	9	
Perry	Shire	LGB103 edition 1	area not divided	5	

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5	
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)	
Pine Rivers	Shire	LGB104 edition 5	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1 division 9—1 division 10—1	11	
Pittsworth	Shire	LGB106 edition 3	area not divided	7	
Pormpuraaw	Shire	LGB161 edition 1	area not divided	7	
Quilpie	Shire	LGB107 edition 1	area not divided	9	
Redcliffe	City	LGB108 edition 1	area not divided	8	
Redland	Shire	LGB109 edition 4	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1 division 9—1 division 10—1	11	
Richmond	Shire	LGB110 edition 1	area not divided	7	

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5	
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)	
Rockhampton	City	LGB111 edition 3	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1 division 9—1 division 10—1	11	
Roma	Town	LGB112 edition 1	area not divided	9	
Rosalie	Shire	LGB113 edition 2	area not divided	9	
Sarina	Shire	LGB115 edition 2	division 1—2 division 2—2 division 3—2	7	
Stanthorpe	Shire	LGB116 edition 1	area not divided	9	
Tambo	Shire	LGB117 edition 2	area not divided 7		
Tara	Shire	LGB118 edition 2	division 1—3 division 2—3 division 3—3	10	
Taroom	Shire	LGB119 edition 1	division 1—4 division 2—4	9	
Thuringowa	City	LGB120 edition 2	division 1—3 division 2—7	11	
Tiaro	Shire	LGB121 edition 2	division 1—2 division 2—3 division 3—3	9	
Toowoomba	City	LGB122 edition 1	area not divided	9	
Torres	Shire	LGB123 edition 4	area not divided	8	

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5	
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division	Total number of councillors (including mayor)	
Townsville	City	LGB124 edition 5	division 1—1 division 2—1 division 3—1 division 4—1 division 5—1 division 6—1 division 7—1 division 8—1 division 9—1 division 10—1	11	
Umagico	Shire	LGB162 edition 1	area not divided	5	
Waggamba	Shire	LGB125 edition 2	division 1—2 division 2—2 division 3—2 division 4—2	9	
Wambo	Shire	LGB126 edition 1	division 1—2 division 2—2 division 3—3 division 4—1	9	
Warroo	Shire	LGB128 edition 2	division 1—5 division 2—2 division 3—2	10	
Warwick	Shire	LGB127 edition 4	division 1—1 division 2—2 division 3—2 division 4—2 division 5—1 division 6—4	13	
Whitsunday	Shire	LGB130 edition 1	division 1—2 division 2—3 division 3—2	8	
Winton	Shire	LGB129 edition 1	area not divided	10	
Wondai	Shire	LGB131 edition 2	area not divided	10	

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5 Total number of councillors (including mayor)	
Local government	Class	Area map	Number of councillors assigned to each division		
Woocoo	Shire	LGB132 edition 1	division 1—2 division 2—2 division 3—2	7	
Woorabinda	Shire	LGB163 edition 1	area not divided	5	
Wujal Wujal	Shire	LGB164 edition 1	area not divided	5	
Yarrabah	Shire	LGB165 edition 1	area not divided	7	

Schedule 2 City of Brisbane—electoral ward boundaries

section 4(1) and (4)

Acacia Ridge—5

Bracken Ridge—6

Central—7

Chandler—8

Deagon—9

Doboy—10

Dutton Park—11

East Brisbane—12

Enoggera—13

Grange—14

Hamilton—15

Holland Park—16

Jamboree—17

Marchant—18

McDowall—19

Moorooka—20

Morningside—21

Northgate—22

Pullenvale—23

Richlands—24

Runcorn—25

The Gap—26

Toowong—27

Walter Taylor—28

Wishart—29

Wynnum-Manly-30

Schedule 3 Information about joint local governments

sections 6 and 7

Part 1 Caloundra–Maroochy Water Supply Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Caloundra–Maroochy Water Supply Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of Caloundra City Council and Maroochy Shire Council.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 3 members from each local government.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is—

- (a) to plan, design, construct, manage, maintain and operate—
 - (i) water supply headworks consisting of a storage dam on Obi Obi Creek; and
 - (ii) any other facility required for the supply of treated or untreated water in bulk to the joint local government area; and
- (b) to treat water in bulk in the area; and
- (c) to supply treated or untreated water in bulk to—

- (i) Caloundra City Council and Maroochy Shire Council; and
- (ii) other consumers inside or outside the area; and
- (d) to sell treated or untreated water in bulk, on conditions the joint local government considers appropriate, to—
 - (i) Caloundra City Council and Maroochy Shire Council; and
 - (ii) other consumers inside or outside the area; and
- (e) to provide, maintain, protect and operate recreational facilities at the water supply headworks and on any other land owned by, or under the control of, the joint local government.

5 President

- (1) The members of the joint local government are to elect 1 of them as president of the joint local government.
- (2) An election for president must take place at the first meeting of the joint local government held after the conclusion of each quadrennial election for the councillors of Caloundra City Council and Maroochy Shire Council.
- (3) The presidency must alternate between a member who is a councillor of Caloundra City Council and a member who is a councillor of Maroochy Shire Council.
- (4) However, subsection (3) does not apply if at least 5 members of the joint local government vote against it.

Part 2 Dalby–Wambo Aerodrome Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Dalby–Wambo Aerodrome Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of Dalby Town Council and Wambo Shire Council.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 3 members from each local government.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is to establish, maintain and regulate public aviation stations for the starting, landing, housing, and repair of aerial craft in the joint local government area.

Part 3 Dalby–Wambo Library Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Dalby–Wambo Library Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of Dalby Town Council and Wambo Shire Council.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 4 members from Dalby Town Council and 2 members from Wambo Shire Council.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is to establish, maintain and conduct a library facility.

5 Contributions

The cost of the operations of the joint local government must be paid as follows—

- (a) if the cost is less than \$225000, Wambo Shire Council must pay \$75000 and Dalby Town Council must pay the balance of the cost;
- (b) if the cost is \$225000 or more, it must be paid in the following proportions—
 - (i) Wambo Shire Council—one-third;
 - (ii) Dalby Town Council—two-thirds.

Part 4 Dalby–Wambo Saleyards Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Dalby–Wambo Saleyards Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of Dalby Town Council and Wambo Shire Council.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 3 members from each local government.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is to acquire, provide, construct, maintain, manage, control and regulate stock saleyards in the joint local government area.

Part 5 Emerald-Peak Downs Saleyards Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Emerald–Peak Downs Saleyards Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of the Shire of Emerald and the Shire of Peak Downs.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 3 members from each local government.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is to provide, construct, maintain, manage, control and regulate stock saleyards in the joint local government area.

Part 6 Esk-Gatton-Laidley Water Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Esk–Gatton–Laidley Water Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of the Shire of Esk, the Shire of Gatton and the Shire of Laidley.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 2 members from each local government.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is—

- (a) to plan, design, manage, construct, operate and maintain the following for the Lowood, Gatton, Laidley Water Supply Scheme—
 - (i) the Brisbane River intake works;
 - (ii) the Lowood Treatment Plant;
 - (iii) interconnecting pumps and pipework;
 - (iv) storage reservoirs;
 - (v) distribution trunk mains.
- (b) to sell water in bulk to the councils of the shires of Esk, Gatton and Laidley, at points to be decided by agreement; and
- (c) to enter into any arrangements that may be necessary for the joint local government to be in a position to sell

water in bulk to the councils of the shires of Esk, Gatton and Laidley.

Part 7 Gladstone-Calliope Aerodrome Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Gladstone–Calliope Aerodrome Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of Gladstone City Council and Calliope Shire Council.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 3 members from each local government.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is to provide, construct, maintain, manage, control and regulate aviation grounds and aerodromes in the joint local government area.

Part 8 Goondiwindi–Waggamba Aerodrome Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Goondiwindi–Waggamba Aerodrome Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of Goondiwindi Town Council and Waggamba Shire Council.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 3 members from Goondiwindi Town Council and 4 members from Waggamba Shire Council.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is to provide, construct, maintain, manage, control and regulate the Goondiwindi Aerodrome situated on portion 15, Parish of Goondiwindi, County of Marsh.

Part 9 Goondiwindi-Waggamba Community Cultural Centre Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Goondiwindi–Waggamba Community Cultural Centre Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of Goondiwindi Town Council and Waggamba Shire Council.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 4 members from Goondiwindi Town Council and 3 members from Waggamba Shire Council.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is to provide, construct, maintain, manage, control and regulate the Goondiwindi–Waggamba Community Cultural Centre.

Part 10 Mission Beach Marine Facilities Joint Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Mission Beach Marine Facilities Joint Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the parts of the areas of Cardwell Shire Council and Johnstone Shire Council shown on plan LG125 held by the department.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 3 members from each local government.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is to provide, construct, maintain, manage, regulate and lease facilities for commercial marine activities in the joint local government area.

Part 11 Nogoa River Flood Plain Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Nogoa River Flood Plain Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the parts of the areas of Broadsound Shire Council, Emerald Shire Council and Peak Downs Shire Council shown on plan JB1 held by the department.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 1 member from Broadsound Shire Council and 2 members each from Emerald Shire Council and Peak Downs Shire Council.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is to manage the Nogoa River flood plain.

5 Appointment of president and deputy president

A representative of the Emerald Shire Council is the president, and a representative of the Peak Downs Shire Council is the deputy president, of the joint local government.

6 Contributions

The cost of the operations of the joint local government must be paid in the following proportions—

- (a) Broadsound Shire Council—nil;
- (b) Emerald Shire Council—71%;
- (c) Peak Downs Shire Council—29%.

Part 12 Rockhampton District Saleyards Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Rockhampton District Saleyards Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of Shire of Fitzroy, Shire of Livingstone, Shire of Mt Morgan and Rockhampton City Council.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 2 members each from Shire of Fitzroy, Shire of Livingstone and Rockhampton City Council and 1 member from Shire of Mt Morgan.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is—

(a) to provide, construct, maintain, manage, control and regulate stock saleyards in the joint local government area; and

(b) to construct, operate, maintain and manage a facility for livestock, equestrian and general displays and events on lots 150 and 151 on plan LN2379 in the joint local government area.

Part 13 Roma-Bungil Show Grounds and Saleyards Board

1 Joint local government

The name of the joint local government is the Roma–Bungil Show Grounds and Saleyards Board.

2 Area

The joint local government area consists of the areas of the Roma Town Council and the Shire of Bungil.

3 Composition

The joint local government is composed of 4 members from each local government.

4 Jurisdiction

The joint local government's jurisdiction is to provide, construct, maintain, manage, control and regulate—

- (a) showgrounds and recreational facilities situated on portion 211, Parish of Roma, County of Waldegrave, in the joint local government area; and
- (b) stock saleyards on land to be acquired by the joint local government for the purpose.

Endnotes

1 Index to endnotes

		Page
2	Date to which amendments incorporated	36
3	Key	36
4	Table of reprints	37
5	List of legislation	37

2 Date to which amendments incorporated

This is the reprint date mentioned in the Reprints Act 1992, section 5(c). However, no amendments have commenced operation on or before that day. Future amendments of the Local Government (Areas) Regulation 2005 may be made in accordance with this reprint under the Reprints Act 1992, section 49.

3 Key

Key to abbreviations in list of legislation and annotations

Key		Explanation	Key		Explanation
AIA	=	Acts Interpretation Act 1954	(prev)	=	previously
amd	=	amended	proc	=	proclamation
amdt	=	amendment	prov	=	provision
ch	=	chapter	pt	=	part
def	=	definition	pubd	=	published
div	=	division	R[X]	=	Reprint No.[X]
exp	=	expires/expired	RA	=	Reprints Act 1992
gaz	=	gazette	reloc	=	relocated
hdg	=	heading	renum	=	renumbered
ins	=	inserted	rep	=	repealed
lap	=	lapsed	(retro)	=	retrospectively
notfd	=	notified	rv	=	revised edition
o in c	=	order in council	s	=	section
om	=	omitted	sch	=	schedule
orig	=	original	sdiv	=	subdivision
р	=	page	SIA	=	Statutory Instruments Act 1992
para	=	paragraph	SIR	=	Statutory Instruments Regulation 2002
prec	=	preceding	\mathbf{SL}	=	subordinate legislation
pres	=	present	sub	=	substituted
prev	=	previous	unnum	=	unnumbered

4 Table of reprints

Reprints are issued for both future and past effective dates. For the most up-to-date table of reprints, see the reprint with the latest effective date.

If a reprint number includes a letter of the alphabet, the reprint was released in unauthorised, electronic form only.

Reprint Amendments included Effective Notes No.

1 none 1 September 2005

5 List of legislation

Local Government (Areas) Regulation 2005 SL No. 211

made by the Governor in Council on 25 August 2005 notfd gaz 26 August 2005 pp 1477–8 ss 1–2 commenced on date of notification remaining provisions commenced 1 September 2005 (see s 2)

exp 1 September 2015 (see SIA s 54)

Note—The expiry date may have changed since this reprint was published. See the latest reprint of the SIR for any change.

© State of Queensland 2005